ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 22, 2007
3:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Represent ati ve Anna Faircl ough
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Sharon G ssna
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Mark Neuman

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Bryce Edgnon
Representative Bill Thonmas

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 72

"An Act relating to the district cost factors for state funding
of public education; providing for an effective date by
repealing the delayed effective date of sec. 6, ch. 41, SLA
2006; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 72 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 181

"An Act relating to traffic offenses and traffic offenses
commtted in a school zone; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 198
"An Act establishing the Alaska senior assistance paynent
program repealing the senior care and |ongevity bonus paynent
prograns; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 198(HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 22, 2007



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 72
SHORT TITLE: SCHOOL DI STRI CT COST FACTORS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CHENAULT, SEATON, OLSON, LEDOUX

01/ 16/ 07 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H) HES, FIN

03/ 22/ 07 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 181

SHORT TITLE: TRAFFI C OFFENSES: FI NES/ SCHOOL ZONES
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

03/ 07/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 07/ 07 (H) HES, JUD
03/ 22/ 07 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 198
SHORT TITLE: SENI OR ASSI STANCE PAYMENT PROGRAM
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

03/ 14/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 14/ 07 (H) HES, FIN
03/ 22/ 07 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 72, as the prinme sponsor.

BLAINE G LMAN, Attorney at Law

Lobbyi st for the Kenai Peninsul a Borough

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Speaking as a registered |obbyist for the
Kenai Peninsula Borough, and as a parent, testified in support
of HB 72.

MARGARET G LMAN

Kenai, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Speaking as an individual, testified in
support of HB 72.

PETER KLAUDER, Presi dent

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 22, 2007



Kl auder & Conpany Architects
Kenai, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

CAROLANN BARUM

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaking as an individual, testified in
support of HB 72.

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( EED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 72.

FRANCI E ROBERTS, Teacher

Homer Hi gh School

Honer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

RON LONG

Sewar d, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaking as an individual, testified in
support of HB 72.

DAVE JONES, Director of Finance

Kodi ak | sl and Borough School District

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

PATTY RI CH
Sterling, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

JOHN W LLI AVS, Mayor

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough

Sol dot na, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

JENNI E HAMMOND

Ni ki ski, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaking as an individual, testified in
support of HB 72.

DEBORAH GERMANO, Memnber

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough Assenbly
Hormer, Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 22, 2007



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

Bl LL HATCH, Menber

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School Board

Kenai, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

M LLI MARTIN, Menber

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough Assenbly

Honer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaking as an individual,
support of HB 72.

LI Z DOMNNI NG Menber

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School Board

Hormer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

PHI LI PPA SONNI CHSEN

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaki ng as an individual,
support of HB 72.

PETER LARSON
Hormer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

MELODY DOUGLAS, Chief Financial Oficer

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

G NNY ESPENSHADE
Homer, Al aska

testified in

testified in

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 72.

MEGAN O NEI LL
Kenai, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

CARL ROSE, Executive D rector

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards.

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

MARY FRANCI S, Executive Director
Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4-

March 22, 2007



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Governnent Rel ations Oficer
Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 72.

ROBERT MYERS, JR., Intern

to Representative Peggy WI son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced HB 181 on behalf of
Representati ve Peggy WI son, sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVKER, Menber

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As the prime sponsor, introduced HB 198.

FRANK APPEL, Chair

Al aska Conm ssion on Aging

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 198.

RALPH C. HUNT, Menber

Pi oneers of Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaking as an individual, testified in
support of HB 198.

PAT LEVY, Advocacy Director

Ameri can Associ ation of Retired Persons

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 198.

MARI E DARLI N, Coor di nat or

Capital Gty Task Force

Ameri can Association of Retired Persons (AARP), Al aska
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 198.

JAVES CARROLL, Menber

Juneau Retired Teachers Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 198.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 22, 2007



KARLEEN JACKSOQON, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Health & Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 198.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal l ed the House Heal th, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:06:36 PM
Representatives WIson, Gardner, Seaton, and Fairclough were
present at the call to order. Representative Cissna arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 72-SCHOCL DI STRI CT COST FACTORS

3:07: 06 PM

CHAI R W LSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 72, "An Act relating to the district cost factors
for state funding of public education; providing for an
effective date by repealing the delayed effective date of sec.
6, ch. 41, SLA 2006; and providing for an effective date."

3:07:34 PM

REPRESENTATIVE M KE  CHENAULT, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
presented HB 72, as the prinme sponsor. He pointed out that cost
differential factors for educational funding have been an issue
for some tinme. Representative Chenault said that HB 72 wll
enact the results of the Institute of Social and Econonc
Research (I SER), University of Alaska, Anchorage, study that was
done to evaluate the differential cost factors for different
parts of the state. He informed the commttee that the current
foundation formula bill was passed in 1998, and allows for
adjustnments to be nade to the formula. School districts around
the state have proven that there is a problemwith the fornula.
He noted that funding to 100 percent of the |SER study
recomendations will nmean an additional $10 million dollars for
the school district in Kenai. The previous funding formula has
been especially difficult for the smaller school districts. In
fact, today the larger school districts are beginning to feel
the changes in their budgets, due to the cost factors, which the
smal | er school districts have been experiencing for seven years.
He said that the results of inadequate school funding include
the loss of bus transportation, class consolidation, and even
school closures, although the school districts are doing
everything that they can to utilize the funds that the state

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 22, 2007



provi des. Representative Chenault observed that sone cities and
bor oughs provide as nuch additional funding as is allowed in an
attenpt to ease the crisis in their schools.

3:15:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER recalled that |ast year 25 percent of the
| SER recomendati ons were inplenented. She asked whether a
simlar additional percentage was planned for subsequent years.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ CHENAULT  expl ained that 25 per cent was
appropriated |last year, with a provision to revisit the formla
each year. He suggested that [the increased percentage] should
be in the formul a.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that there are vast inequities
in school funding across the state. She asked what effect the
passage of HB 72 woul d have on Anchor age.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT answered that if $72 mllion are added
to the formula, it wuld not have a negative inpact on
Anchor age. However, this anount added to the fornula would not
gai n Anchorage any funds.

3:18: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that there is a dispute about sone
of the underpinnings and conclusions of the |ISER study and she
asked to have soneone conme forward to di scuss those issues.

3:19: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked how school districts qualify for
power cost equalization. In addition, Anchorage, as a regiona
hub, requires nore special needs funding due to the high density
of special needs children there. She asked for information on
how the | SER study reflects this additional need. Referring to
the fiscal note, Representative Fairclough then asked for an
expl anation of the follow ng: "Money in the Public Education
Fund (PEF) flows to K-12 support with out further appropriation
for distribution to school districts.™

3:20: 47 PM
CHAIR WLSON indicated that public testinmony would be taken

before the analysis by the Departnent of Education & Early
Devel opnent ( EED).

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 22, 2007



3:21: 08 PM

BLAINE G LMAN, Attorney at Law, Lobbyist for the Kenai Peninsula
Bor ough, stated the borough's support for HB 72. He expl ai ned
that, according to the |ISER report, the Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District ("KPBSD') wll be wunderfunded by over $11
mllion in FY 08. The cause of the under funding is that the
current cost differential treats the KPBSD as an urban school
district; however, it serves rural and urban schools, including
four village schools. M. Glmn said current funding allows
KPBSD only four-tenths of one percent over the Anchorage school
district allowance. This district has always been supported by
| ocal governnment at the maximum allowable |evel and maintains
the lowest administrative costs of any school district in the
st ate. Under the current funding, 72 teachers will need to be
laid off and will result in student teacher ratios to be raised
to 1:24 for kindergarten classes. In the smaller schools, the
teachers will be teaching multiple grade |evel classes. Wth
all of these neasures the district will still be operating with
a deficit of $2 mllion. He opined that his public education in
Kenai was nore conplete than what his children are receiving
now, that school funding is inadequate, and that education is
taking a step backward. M. G| man concluded by saying that the
cost differential is the nost critical problem facing the KPBSD
today and urged nenbers to pass HB 72 fromcomm ttee.

3:25:12 PM

MARGARET G LMAN inforned the commttee that she was speaking for
her four school-aged children and stated her support for HB 72.
Ms. Glman pointed out the opportunities she received while
attending public school in Kenai and said that the quality of
school has beconme mnimzed. At this tine there are no
suppl emental cl asses outside of what is required for passing the
hi gh school graduation exans. As a society, we want to do nore
for our children, not |ess. Ms. G lman urged the comrittee to
pass HB 72, in order to prevent this generation of Alaskans from
bei ng of fered fewer opportunities for education.

3:27:10 PM

Pet er Kl auder, President of Klauder & Conpany Architects, stated
his support for HB 72 and described how he originally |ooked
forward to having his children attend public school in Kenai.
M. Klauder said that he and his wife, a school nurse, have been
active in the schools as volunteers and as school enployees.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 22, 2007



Since his children have started school, funding has been cut and
the supplenental teachers and prograns have been elim nated;

beginning with the librarian and nusic and art prograns. He
informed the comittee that advanced placenent high school
classes for seniors may not be available soon. M. Kl auder

strongly urged the commttee's support for HB 72, which wll
provi de sonme equity in the distribution of school funding.

3:29:46 PM

CAROLANN BARUM stated her support for HB 72 and said that she
has watched the educational opportunities at the schools in
Kenai decrease. As a professional health care provider with two
children, she researched the schools several vyears ago and
relocated to Kenai because of the school system however, the
schools have lost Ilibrarians, nusic and advanced placenent
cl asses. Ms. Barumurged the commttee's support of HB 72.

3:32: 00 PM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED), said that

HB 72 will inplement the full recomendations of the 2005 | SER
report. M. Jeans explained that the fiscal note cost of
$72,608 million represents the renainder outstanding after the
previ ous appropriation of $24 mllion. In response to the

guestion from Representative Fairclough, he explained that
nmonies that are appropriated to the PEF are held in that fund
until disbursed by EED, according to statutory entitlenent.

3:34:09 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked whether the PEF is a different fund.

MR. JEANS answered that the PEF is the sanme fund passed out of
this commttee to the House Finance Commttee, and it also funds
the foundation and pupil transportation fund. Also included in
t hat appropriations bill was additional funding to the
Department of Admnistration for the Public Enployee's and
Teacher's Retirement System ( PERS/ TRS)

3:34: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether Chair WIson was
referring to the Education Endowrent fund.

3:34: 57 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- March 22, 2007



CHAIR WLSON recalled that last year funds for education were
set aside.

MR. JEANS explained that nonies are held in the PEF fund, and
the fund can be over funded, |ike a holding account, and funds
are di sbursed by additional appropriations.

CHAI R WLSON asked whet her schools receive noney fromthe EED on
a nont hly basi s.

MR. JEANS said yes. Monthly paynments are a statutory
requirenent.

3:35:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whet her education has only one
fund.

MR. JEANS answered yes. He then said that there is one fund for
the pupil transportation and foundation prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her understanding that the
state legislature has a holding account, that has noney in it,
for forward funding of education. She asked whether there was
an account that does not "nove forward."

MR. JEANS responded that [PEF] is the account and it does not
require further appropriation from the |egislature, once the
appropriation is made to the fund.

3:36: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked about the basic disputes regarding
t he | SER st udy.

MR. JEANS replied that the one area under the | SER study that is
under dispute is the issue dealing with teacher conpensation.
He explained that the American Institute for Research (AR
reported that average teacher salaries were the same across the

state. However, the |ISER peer review indicated that certain
aspects were not taken into consideration, such as teacher
experience, turnover, and |ongevity. M. Jeans opined that the

cost differentials reported by the |ISER study were substantially
hi gher after these factors were included.

3:38: 36 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- March 22, 2007



FRANCI E ROBERTS infornmed the commttee that she is a high school
teacher at Homer H gh School and stated her support for HB 72.
Ms. Roberts explained that in the past 13 years the 500 student
hi gh school has |ost hone econom cs, photography, two foreign
| anguages, drama, and the gifted and talented program There is
one vocational education teacher, one counselor, and the
athletic director and librarian are half-tine. She opined that
it has been sad to see the school prograns dw ndle over the | ast
fifteen years. A small school in the area has been closed. M.
Roberts urged the commttee to support 100 percent funding of
t he | SER st udy.

3:41: 14 PM

RON LONG informed the conmttee that he is a resident of Seward
and is testifying on his own behal f. He stated his support for
HB 72 and described the |ack of funding for the Kenai Peninsula
Borough School District. M. Long said that there is an
inequitable distribution of educational funding throughout the
state. The borough has been funding education to the maximm
all owed, but prograns are still being |ost. It is not a
function of enrollnment or high adm nistration costs, he opined,
it is a problem of the cost differential. M. Long urged the
commttee to seriously consider HB 72.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what percent of the budget is
all ocated to adm nistration costs.

MR. LONG estimated 3 percent.
3:43: 47 PM

DAVE JONES, Director of Finance, Kodiak |sland Borough School
District, expl ai ned t hat t he current fundi ng formul a
appropriated by SB 36 was based on the MDowell study. He
recalled that the McDowell study included a disclainer that the
study was not sufficient on which to base a funding formula;
however, that is what happened. SB36 called for EED to redo the
cost factors, and the departnment ordered the AIR study, which

was never inplenented. Now, there is the |ISER peer review and
recommendati ons which take teacher turnover under consideration
and are better tools to utilize than SB36. M. Jones drew an

anal ogy of PERS/ TRS and paynents nade outside of the formnula.
The full study needs to be inplenented, he stressed.

3:46: 54 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 22, 2007



PATTY RICH stated her support for HB 72. She informed the
commttee that Kenai Peninsula Borough school funding has been
declining for several years and needs to be restored. In the 20
years she has had children in the school system she has
w t nessed program reductions. She urged the commttee to fund
school s adequately and fairly.

3:47:51 PM

John WIllianms, Mayor, Kenai Peninsula Borough, stated his
support for HB 72, and said that w thout adequate funding it is
not possible to maintain good teacher and admi nistrative |evels.
He noted that the schools in his borough are renote and nust
provi de teacher housing and transportation. He gave exanples of
teacher shortages at the borough schools and the Ilack of
vocational educational prograns. Mayor W I Ilianms concluded by
saying that the Kenai Peninsula Borough is very supportive of
bring funding to the | SER report |evel.

3:50: 21 PM

JENNIE HAMMOND told the conmittee that her kindergartener at
Ni ki ski North Star Elenentary School has 23 children in her
cl ass and her second grader has 25 students in his class. The
school projects next year's enrollnment to be 368 students wth
14 teachers. She expressed her hope that nore funding will be
avai | abl e next year.

3:51:45 PM

DEBORAH GERMANO, Menber, Kenai Peninsula Borough Assenbly, asked
the commttee to ook at the inequities of funding. She not ed
that Anchorage citizens can provide support for education by
additional nunicipal funding; however, the Kenai Peninsula
Borough is funding its schools to the maxi mum anount. In
addition, she pointed out that her borough is wusing general
funds for pupil transportation. M. Germano urged the conmttee
to support HB 72.

3:53: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER clarified that she had asked whether the
bill would hurt Anchorage, not what the bill would do for
Anchor age.
3:54:22 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 22, 2007



Bl LL HATCH, Menber, Kenai Peninsula School Board, recalled that
at one tinme the schools in Kenai were well equipped. Presently,
funding cuts have taken their resources beyond the bare bones
and students are suffering. Large and small schools have | ost
progranms and inportant courses are no |onger avail able.

3:56:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what percent of the school district
budget is adm nistration.

MR. HATCH sai d about four percent.
3:56:21 PM

M LLI MARTIN, Menber, Kenai Peninsula Borough Assenbly, stated
that she was testifying on her own behalf. She said that the
Kenai Peninsul a Borough covers an area of 25,000 square mles,
and supports 44 schools. Five of the schools are not accessible
on the road system and yet, Kenai schools are funded at a | evel
close to that of Anchorage and the Mat-Su school districts. M.
Martin opined that, if Anchorage were funded at Kenai's |evel
the projected |oss of teachers to Anchorage woul d be 350, rather
than the projected 100. She pointed out that property taxes in
t he Kenai Peninsula Borough are paying a disproportionate share
of education costs. Ms. Martin strongly urged the conmttee to
enact HB 72.

3:58:51 PM

LI Z DOWI NG  Menber, Kenai Peninsula Borough School Board,
informed the commttee that as a school board nenber, the nost
frequent comrent she hears is that Al aska, one of the wealthiest
states, does not have the will to fund its educational system
She noted that famlies are leaving the state because of the
m ni mal school opportunities for their children. Ms. Downi ng
stated that her school district is limted to teaching core
cl asses and the best new teachers are being laid off. Thi s
situation, she said, is the result of not inplenmenting |ISER for
the last 15 years. She concluded by saying that this is not
what the students deserve, or what is wanted for our children
and asked that the full anobunt of the |ISER study be funded.

4:01: 21 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- March 22, 2007



PH LI PPA SONNI CHSEN informed that committee that she and her
husband have two children in the Kenai school system MVs.
Sonni chsen pointed out that her school district supports a
school in Seldovia, and it is very expensive to maintain schools
that are off the road system She said that she is supporting
HB 72 because it is the right thing to do. Current cost
differentials are unfair to the Kenai Peninsula Borough School
District.

4:02:43 PM

PETER LARSON described his extensive experience as a teacher and
adm nistrator working for 32 years in the Kenai Peninsula
Bor ough School District and el sewhere. He expressed his concern
over the decline in educational funding that began in 1986.
Teachers and admnistrators are being held to an inpossible

standard as progranms, staff, and resources are cut. He
suggested that cookie sales can not attract the hi ghest standard
of teachers to the district. H s international experience has

showmn that Alaska students are losing the conpetitive edge
needed to succeed. At one tine, the international prograns were
behind the quality standards of Kenai schools; however, the
situation has reversed. He urged the conmittee to correct the
funding fornula, increase funding to all schools, and forward
fund educati on.

4:05:17 PM

MELODY DOQUGLAS, Chief Financial Oficer, Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, expressed her belief that any study of
differential cost will be faulted; however, the state needs to
nove ahead to begin to recover from the past |osses. Her
district has a $1 mllion shortfall in transportation which nust
be made up by the general fund. M. Douglas relayed the effects
of the increased costs of Iliability and property insurance,
wor kman' s conpensation costs, health care, and utilities. She
urged the conmttee to choose to support Al aska's nobst inportant
resource, its children

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for the percentage of the budget
that goes into adm nistration, and how it conpares to the other
school districts.

MS. DOUGLAS answered that adnministration costs are about four

percent and every district is in a reduction nobde in that
regard.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 22, 2007



4:07:56 PM

G NNY ESPENSHADE stated that she has had a child in the public
school system for 14 years. She opined that the |egislature has
had years to understand the |ISER study and the conplexities of
this issue.

4:09: 03 PM

MEGAN O NEILL informed the conmttee that Alaska is a state that
develops its natural resources, but for 15 years its children
have not been devel oped. She opined that the state wll pay,
with jails and other negative outcones, if the schools are not
f unded. Ms. ONeill strongly urged the commttee to support HB
72.

4:10: 39 PM

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School

Boards (AASB), remnded the commttee that under the forner
foundation formula there was an oversight regarding small,
single site schools and the legislature mtigated that problem
for ten of the next eleven years. \Wen SB36 was passed, it was
controversial, but it was understood that the funding was not
adequate and that the fornmula would be revisited. Therefore

the AIR and | SER studies were conpleted. The AASB supports 100
percent inplenentation of the |ISER study and supports HB 72.
M. Rose added that the policy issues regarding this bill have
been covered.

4:12: 06 PM

MARY FRANCIS, Executive Director, Alaska Council of Schoo
Adm nistrators (ACSA), recalled that the education cost
differential has not been adjusted, but once since 1998, and the
failure to do so threatens the integrity of the foundation
formul a program She said that the ACSA is in support of full
funding of the ISER study and reiterated that HB 72 should be
acconpanied by an increase in the base student allocation to all
school districts. Dr. Francis noted that her association
di scussed the flaws in the |ISER study and concluded that the
current formula is flawed.

4:13:16 PM

JOHN ALCANTRA, Governnment Relations Director, National Education
Associ ati on- Al aska (NEA- Al aska), informed the commttee that his

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 15- March 22, 2007



association represents 13,000 public school enployees and
strongly supports HB 72. He said that he has visited many of
the small schools in the rural areas and his experience shows
that the rural schools do not have the opportunities for their
students that the urban schools have. These schools wll be
positively inpacted by HB 72 and urged its passage.

4:14:52 PM
CHAI R W LSON cl osed public testinony.
4:15: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expl ai ned that sonetinmes questions are
asked so that the answer can be on the record, not to reflect
support or opposition to a bill. She then noved to report HB 72
out of conmmttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB 72 was
reported out of the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Comm ttee.

HB 181- TRAFFI C CFFENSES: FI NES/ SCHOOL ZONES

4:15:55 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 181, "An Act relating to traffic offenses and
traffic offenses commtted in a school zone; and providing for
an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt CSHB 181, 25-LS0613\L as
t he working docunent. There being no objection, Version L was
before the commttee.

4:16:26 PM

ROBERT MYERS, JR., Intern to Representative Peggy W/Ison, Al aska
State Legislature, introduced HB 181 on behalf of Representative
W | son, sponsor. M. Mers relayed that HB 181 wll increase
the safety of children in school zones. For exanple, a child on
foot has a 55 percent survival rate when hit by a car traveling
at 30 mles per hour; however, when the speed of the car is
reduced to 20 m |l es per hour, the survival rate is 90 percent.

CHAIR W LSON announced that HB 181 was only to be introduced at

this tine and will be brought back to the commttee at a |later
dat e.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- March 22, 2007



[ Although not formally announced, HB 181 was held over wth
public testinony open.]

HB 198- SENI OR ASSI STANCE PAYMENT PROGRAM

4:18:21 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 198, "An Act establishing the Al aska senior
assi stance paynent program repealing the senior care and
| ongevity bonus paynent prograns; and providing for an effective
date."

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER, Al aska State Legislature, introduced
HB 198, as the prinme sponsor. He noted his nenbership on the
House Finance Commttee and chairmanship of the budget
subconm ttee for HESS and said that, in those capacities, he has
been made aware of the inportance of wunrestricted cash state
assi stance to seniors. Representative Hawker recalled that, in
2003, the legislature did not fund the |ongevity bonus, the act
that originally provided assistance to seniors who qualified
only by the length of their residency in the state. He
expl ained the history of the Senior Care program a needs-based
program that provided a cash assistance paynent to |ow incone
seni ors. However, the Senior Care program did not acconplish
its objective to provide assistance wth the cost of
prescription drugs. Represent ati ve Hawker pointed out that the
real needs of low inconme seniors in Al aska are addressed by HB
198. The bill offers a restoration of a cash benefit program
for qualified seniors, and will be effective as the previous
program sunsets on June 30, 2007. He continued to explain that
HB 198 creates a tiered paynent system and that nonthly paynents
are: $250 per nmonth to individuals with income less than 75
percent of federal poverty level guidelines for Al aska (FPL-A);
$175 per nmonth to individuals with income from 75 percent to
| ess than 100 percent of FPL-A; $125 per nonth to individuals
with incone from 100 percent to less than 135 percent of FPL-A
He stressed that the program is needs-based; however, the it
will not be supported by Medicaid matching funds because the
program provi des a cash assi stance benefit.

4:25: 34 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER concl uded by saying that HB 198 creates a

single program for the benefit of Iow incone seniors and
delivers help to all seniors who neet the eligibility

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 22, 2007



requi renents. In addition, this bill does not include a
regul atory asset test limt and, therefore, is a fair and
bal anced approach to providing benefits to seniors. He noted
that HB 198 includes a sunset clause for June 30, 2011, and the
Seni or Assi stance Paynent Program can be revisited at that tine.

4:26:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER acknowl edged that the cancellation of the
| ongevity bonus program was unfair. She asked whether the
assistance paynent is included when calculating the senior's
poverty | evel.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER replied that the incone from the program
is not included in the eligibility testing for the program He
added that HB 198 is a needs-based program and does not require
a hold harm ess provision in the statute.

4:28: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that the assistance program
should elevate the elderly and |low incone seniors above the
poverty | evel.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER opined that the state can not guarantee
every resident a certain |lifestyle.

4:29: 47 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his appreciation of the fact
that a previously qualified senior will not need to re-apply for
this program He then asked for the definition of state
resi dency.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER acknow edged that state residency is not
stipulated in this bill, but that residency has an ubiquitous
definition within the entire public assistance arena.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that the intention of HB 198 is
to not require residency, although residency is required to
recei ve an Al aska Pernmanent Fund di vi dend.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER confirmed that there is no intent to
include restrictive residency requirenments in this bill.

4:31:57 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 22, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recal |l ed that when the senior care program
was first passed, the sunset date was intended to coordinate
with a federal senior program

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER agreed that, in the original concept of
the senior care program there was an intent to coordinate with
a senior federal prescription drug benefit program but neither
prescription drug program has been successful.

CHAI R W LSON added that only 140 peopl e appli ed.

4:33: 50 PM

FRANK APPEL, Chair, Alaska Comm ssion on Aging, stated his
comm ssion's support for HB 198. He said that |ow incone
seniors struggle to pay for food and heating fuel. Cash
assi stance, based on inconme, wll enable seniors to continue to
live independently. The Al aska Conmm ssion on Aging reviewed the
bill and suggested that the |egislature consider increasing the
eligibility to 135 percent of the poverty |evel. Nevert hel ess,

he said that the comm ssion requests the commttee' s support of
HB 198.

4:35:42 PM

RALPH C. HUNT, Menber, Pioneers of Alaska, stated his support
for HB 198, and said that, although he would not be in need
wi thout this bill, many people would benefit fromits passage.

4:36:43 PM

PAT LEVY, Advocacy Director, Anerican Association of Retired
Persons (AARP), Alaska, infornmed the commttee that the AARP s
policy, set by the board of directors, supports governnent
assi stance to those nobst in need. He suggested that HB 198 is
better public policy than the restoration of the |longevity
bonus. The bill also addresses the needs of older Al askans
between the ages of 65 and 75, who do not quality for the
| ongevity bonus. M. Levy expressed AARP' s concern that cash
paynents may not be enough to keep seniors out of nursing hones.
Therefore, support for services such as, Meals on Weels, adult
day care, and the Keep the Elders at Hone Initiative nust

cont i nue. He suggested increasing the eligibility to 150
percent or 175 percent of the poverty level, if possible. In
response to Representative Gardner's question, he opined that HB
198 will bring the seniors with the |owest incone above the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 22, 2007



poverty |evel. M. Levy concluded by saying that HB 198 is a
very good public policy program

4:39:53 PM

MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator, Capital Gty Task Force, Anmerican
Association of Retired Persons (AARP), Al aska, spoke of the
ol der residents who wll benefit from the passage of HB 198.
She said that |ower income older people in Alaska fall into
three categories: people who worked for | ow wages, often at two
j obs, but never accunulated nuch and they conme to age 65 wth
m ni mum social security; people in renote Al aska, especially
those with subsistence lifestyles, who never saw nmuch cash when
they were young and do not have nmuch cash as elders; ol der
peopl e, especially older wonen, who saved their whole life but,
usual Iy because of health care costs, often for a termnally il

spouse, used their savings to pay for health care, and find

thenselves at a lower incone after retirenent. Ms. Darlin
opined that HB 198 is designed to help those who need it the
nost and is good public policy that wll help many ol der

Al askans deal with circunstances beyond their control.
4:42: 08 PM

JAMES CARROLL, Menber, Juneau Retired Teachers Association,
expressed his organization's support for HB 198. However, he
requested that the longevity bonus program be kept on the books
and not forgotten.

4:42:57 PM

Karl een Jackson, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health & Soci al
Services, advised the commttee that HB 198 is an enhancenent to
HB 148 in that it 1is a needs-based program Comm ssi oner
Jackson said that her departnment supports HB 198 with the caveat
that the longevity bonus should also be considered, relaying
Governor Palin's mnessage that "a pronmise made should be a
prom se kept."

4:43: 57 PM
CHAI R W LSON cl osed public testinony.
4:44: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her understanding that the
fastest growing population in the state is residents over the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 22, 2007



age of 65. She asked whether the financial analysis of the
future cost of the bill takes into consideration the growh in
the nunmber of seniors who will qualify for the program or if
research shows that aging residents are in a better state of
financial security than their predecessors.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER affirnmed that denographics, stratified by
age, indicate a growi ng senior popul ation. One recent study of
econom c trends projected a marked increase, beginning in 2015

and continuing to 2025, of residents who wll qualify for
Medicaid. By the year 2025, Medicaid enrollment may increase to
25,000 seniors. The potential growh of this program is of

serious concern and it is incunbent upon the legislature to
reassess the needs of comunities and the allocation of
resources in four years. Representati ve Hawker expressed his
belief that the state nust make an increasing commtnent to
seniors to address this denographi c change.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH referred to the 135 percent poverty
| evel cap and inquired as to the financial inpact of raising the
eligibility level to, for exanple, 150 percent. She asked
whet her Representative Hawker would support an anendnent that
raises the eligibility |evel

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted that 135 percent of poverty level is
the eligibility cap for the current Senior Care Program He
reiterated that HB 198 increases the eligibility of many seniors
by the renoval of the assets test. However, noving the
eligibility cap up, in addition, makes predicting the financia
costs of the bill speculative. For exanple, noving to the [150
percent] level increases the cost of the programto $18 million,
and a cap of 175 percent would increase the cost to $20 mllion.
He agreed that it would be good to explore the tolerance of the
| egislature for increasing the fiscal note, but he cautioned
agai nst increasing the cap by a conmttee anmendnent at this tine
wi t hout further research

4:51.: 06 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated her support for the bill and
acknowl edged the probability of further examnation of the

eligibility level by the finance conmmttee.

4:51: 29 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- March 22, 2007



CHAI R WLSON pointed out that the needs of seniors are great and
she also encouraged the sponsor to look at raising the
eligibility cap

4:51:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his support of the fact that HB
189 does not tie eligibility to a fixed nunber and, therefore
eligibility will increase as the poverty guideline increases.

4:52:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER affirmed that the previous program did not
all ow annual adjustnments of the poverty |evel. HB 189 wll
specifically allow the guidelines to nmove wth the annual
adj ustnments issued by the federal governnment.

CHAI R W LSON provi ded an exanple of why that is inportant.
4:53: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HB 198 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objections, HB 198 was reported from the
House Heal th, Education and Social Services Standing Comm ttee.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Comm ttee neeting
was adj ourned at 4:54:20 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- March 22, 2007



